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RFP No. 900977, Addendum No. 2

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

ADDENDUM No. 2
to

RFP No. 901555
for

Pre-Employment Physical Exams and 

Occupational Health Services
Calendar Change 

and

Specification Clarification/Modification and Recap of the Networking/Bidders Conferences

Held on August 24, 2017 and August 25, 2017 
	This County of Alameda, General Services Agency (GSA), RFP Addendum has been electronically issued to potential bidders via e-mail.  E-mail addresses used are those in the County’s Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) Vendor Database or from other sources.  If you have registered or are certified as a SLEB, please ensure that the complete and accurate e-mail address is noted and kept updated in the SLEB Vendor Database.  This RFP Addendum will also be posted on the GSA Contracting Opportunities website located at http://acgov.org/gsa_app/gsa/purchasing/bid_content/contractopportunities.jsp.


**REVISED BID DUE DATE and CALENDAR OF EVENTS**
PLEASE NOTE THAT BID RESPONSES ARE NOW DUE ON 
SEPTEMBER 27, 2017 BY 2:00 P.M.
Alameda County is committed to reducing environmental impacts across our entire supply chain. 

If printing this document, please print only what you need, print double-sided, and use recycled-content paper.

The following Sections have been modified to read as shown below.  Changes made to the original RFP document are in bold print and highlighted, and deletions made have a strike through.
II. CALENDAR OF EVENTS
	EVENT
	DATE/LOCATION

	Request Issued
	August 16, 2017 

	Written Questions Due
	by 5:00 p.m. on August 23, 2017

	*Networking/Bidders Conference #1
(Online conference option enabled for remote participation)
	August 24, 2017 @ 10:00 a.m.

	at:
General Services Agency

Room 1107, 11th Floor

1401 Lakeside Drive
Oakland, CA 94560
OR remotely @       http://gsaalamedacounty.adobeconnect.com/admin/show-event-catalog

	Networking/Bidders Conference #2
	August 25, 2017 @ 2:00 p.m.
	at:
Public Works Agency
Room 230

951 Turner Court
Hayward, CA 94545

	Addendum 1 Issued
	September 1, 2017

	Addendum 2 Issued
	September 11, 2017 September 13, 2017

	Response Due
	September 25, 2017 by 2:00 p.m. September 27, 2017 by 2:00 p.m.

	Evaluation Period
	September 25, 2017 – October 20, 2017 September 27, 2017 – October 25, 2017

	Vendor Interviews
	October 18, 2017

	Board Letter Recommending Award Issued
	November 21, 2017

	Contract Start Date
	January 1, 2018


Note:
Award and start dates are approximate.

Responses to Questions

Q1) If a bidder is not a certified SLEB, can the bidder still submit a proposal for this RFP?
A1) Page 6 of Exhibit A, (REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION AND SUBMITTALS), Item 3.(b)(1), states:

Every bidder must fill out and submit a signed SLEB Partnering Information Sheet, (found on page 9 of Exhibit A) indicating their SLEB certification status.  If bidder is not certified, the name, identification information, and goods/services to be provided by the named CERTIFIED SLEB partner(s) with whom the bidder will subcontract to meet the County SLEB participation requirement must be stated. 

The SLEB certification is a requirement to bid for this RFP.  If bidder is not a certified SLEB, bidder must subcontract 20% of the contract amount to a certified SLEB.  If a bidder is not a certified SLEB, nor will it subcontract to a certified SLEB, the County recommends bidder to list any exceptions on page 12 of Exhibit A, Exceptions, Clarifications, Amendments.  However, the County is under no obligation to accept any exceptions and such exceptions may be a basis for bid disqualification.
Q2) Is a SLEB subcontractor required to be in business or have a location in Alameda County for a certain amount of time prior to the due date of this RFP?
A2) Please refer to the SLEB Program Certification Instructions:

http://www.acgov.org/auditor/sleb/forms/VendorCertInstructions.pdf

Please note that the SLEB certification must be completed by the time of bid submittal.
Q3) Will Prime bidders receive SLEB preference points for subcontracting to a SLEB?
A3) If a Prime bidder does not meet the definition of local and is not a certified SLEB, he is not eligible for any preference points even though he is subcontracting with a SLEB(s).  Bidder must acknowledge one of the three items on page 3 of Exhibit A, (BIDDER INFORMATION AND ACCEPTANCE), Item 10.
Q4) Can the County please provide the name of the current contractor?
A4) The current contractor for Pre-Employment Physical Exams and Occupational Health Services is Kaiser On-The-Job.
Q5) Page 4 of the RFP, Section C (BIDDER QUALIFICATIONS), Item 2, states:
Bidder shall possess all permits, licenses and professional credentials necessary to supply product and perform services as specified under this RFP.

Professional Staffing: All medical employees of Bidder shall be professionally trained and hold valid licenses to practice in the State of California.  Bidder shall use staff certified in the interpretation and diagnosis of special procedures and tests (i.e. radiology, cardiology, etc.) as appropriate.

Can the medical staff on duty at the examination center locations, whom may not be licensed, read and interpret diagnosis and tests?

A5) The use of unlicensed medical staff is governed by the Medical Board of California and services under this contract with the County must follow those regulations.
Q6) Can the County please clarify who can read the test results?  Will only a licensed cardiologist be allowed to read and interpret the EKG or would a medical assistant be able to do so?
A6) The use of unlicensed medical staff is governed by the Medical Board of California and services under this contract with the County must follow those regulations.
Q7) Page 7 of the RFP, Section D (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 1.a.(3), lists the Location of Services.  Will the County consider an examination center location in the City of Fremont in place of Union City?
A7) Yes.  The County would consider a location of service in the City of Fremont as an acceptable location in place of Union City.  The County is seeking to have representation in South County.
Q8) Would the County consider an examination center location in Emeryville in place of Oakland?
A8) Yes.  The County would consider Emeryville as an acceptable location in place of Oakland.
Q9) Would Emeryville be a useful location for the County?
A9) Yes.  The County prefers to have examination centers in Oakland, however, Emeryville may be a convenient location if it is closer to the Oakland/Emeryville border.  Emeryville is close to Downtown Oakland and there are a number of County buildings located in and near Downtown Oakland.
Q10) Is the County seeking to have specialized tests be available at all the examination center locations?  Or should the specialized tests be delegated geographically depending on availability of the provider?
A10) The County prefers to have a large foot print of examination center locations and have the option to have tests available in different examination center locations for the ease of accessibility for employees.
Q11) Will the County allow for providers to travel to different examination center locations to complete tests since availability of providers may vary from center to center?
A11) Providers may travel to different examination center locations to complete tests as long as the wait times for employees and the reporting of exam results to departments are not negatively impacted and there were no additional charges to the County. 
Q12) Would the County consider the contractor having a network of examination center locations outside of the County to provide services?  For example, if an employee is hired from outside the County, can that employee complete tests at examination center locations outside of the County?
A12) Yes.  The County will consider the contractor completing tests outside of the County for employees hired from outside of the County.
Q13) Would the County prefer to have certain examinations and/or tests be completed at the employees’ work location?  For example, general medical examinations for firefighters to be completed at the fire stations?
A13) Many of the exams require a clinical setting.  The response to the RFP should focus on exams being performed at clinics.  The County would be open to reviewing alternatives but the narrative would need to explain clearly the advantages of onsite medical examinations while preserving the medical integrity of the exams, privacy issues, and the efficiency of reporting back to departments.
Q14) Page 8 of the RFP, Section D (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 1.a.(3)(b), states:
Provide services or have access to medical providers outside of the County that will enable medical screenings to be completed in accordance with the County protocols for candidates living outside of the San Francisco Bay area.
Can the County please clarify which areas outside of the San Francisco Bay Area would need services?
A14) The County expects to have coverage in the Bay Area and the next surrounding Counties as well as Northern California.  The County would like to cover a large foot print to include the surrounding local areas.
Q15) Where is the primary location for examination services?
A15) The larger concentration of County Agency and Department buildings are in Oakland, in Downtown and the Lake Merritt area.  There are also County Agencies and Departments in East County and in South County.
Q16) Page 9 of the RFP, Section D (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 1.a.(7), lists the Medical Health Records that the Contractor shall initiate and/or update and states:


These records and all related materials shall remain the property of the County.
Can the County please clarify this requirement since it would be considered a HIPAA violation?
A16) The County’s expectation is to have all documents and records transferred to the new contractor if there were a change in contractor for Pre-Employment Physical Exams and Occupational Health Services.  The County needs to ensure that results from annual exams, such as hearing exams, are transferred to the new contractor so that the employees’ examinations and vaccination history are maintained.
Q17) What is the frequency of on-site services performed, such as Tuberculosis tests and vaccinations, and how many tests will the County need completed at each time?
A17) The County holds larger on-site events and County Departments would submit request to RMU to set up.  The County has pre-set dates in the fall for the County employee clinics for flu shots and Tuberculosis testing, and County Employee Health Expos.  The County will coordinate with the contractor to have everything set up for those clinics and expos.
Q18) Page 12, Section D (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 5.d., states:
Services shall be provided in a timely manner, based on a scheduled appointment.  Contractor represents that it has sufficient staffing and resources such that an applicant/employee will not wait more than 30 minutes from the time of the appointment, before the exam services are started.
Does the current contractor meet the requirement for wait time?
A18) The current contractor is meeting the wait time requirement.
Q19) Would the wait time requirement apply to all circumstances at the examination centers?  For example, if five individuals come to the center and are injured, the staff must address those injuries as a priority, therefore, the wait times will be affected.
A19) If there are extensive wait times or notification reports from County Agencies and Departments, the contractor should notify the County.
Q20) Should the contractor notify the County or a supervisor about elongated wait times?
A20) Yes.  If an employee is sent out to the examination center with expectations of the employee returning in a certain amount of time, the contractor should notify the County or the supervisor.  The County expects the contractor to fulfill appointments as scheduled, since the employees will be going to examination centers based on scheduled appointments.
Q21) The Bid Form lists the Estimated Usage per Year for components such as Medical Assistant Service, Registered Nurse Service, Licensed Vocation Nurse Service, and Nurse Practitioner Service.  Does the County anticipate the usage of these components to be 250 per year?
A21) The County is estimating for the maximum usage per year.  It is possible that the maximum may not be reached during the term of this contract.
Q22) Will a bidder be able to submit multiple bid forms for different examination center locations since there may a variance in pricing?
A22) The County is seeking a single bid form from each bidder for the ease of bid evaluation.  However, a bidder may submit multiple bid forms for different examination center locations and the County can review and evaluate accordingly.
Q23) Can the County please clarify the methodology used to complete the bone density tests at the County’s employee health expos?
A23) The bone density machine is brought to the location to perform tests for the County’s employee health expos.
Q24) Can a bidder list current references as former references if a bidder does not have all five former references?
A24) Yes.  Bidder may provide current references in place of former references if bidder does not have all five former references.  Please note exceptions on page 12 of Exhibit A, (EXCEPTIONS, CLARIFICATIONS and AMENDMENTS).
Q25) What would the County change about the current services?
A25) The County has outlined this RFP to meet the needs for Pre-Employment Physical Exams and Occupational Health Services to include the large number of exams and tests and ancillary services to be completed for the employees.  The County is seeking to have all needs met in a timely basis and quick turnaround for exams and results.  The process and time frame of having exams and tests completed should meet the County’s expectations.
Bidders should follow requirements of this RFP as it is the requirements the County will be evaluating for this RFP.
Q26) Is there competition with other County departments for time frames of examinations and tests to be performed?
A26) The County is looking to have a quick turnaround time for examinations and tests to be completed which would allow for a quicker hiring process.
Q27) Can the County please provide the current pricing for Pre-Employment Physical Exams and Occupational Health Services?
A27) Yes.  Please see attached Exhibit D.
The following participants attended the Bidders Conferences:

	
	Company Name / Address
	Representative
	Contact Information

	1. 
	Occu-Med

2121 West Bullard Avenue

Fresno, CA 93711
	Jared Kaji
	Phone: 559-435-2800 ext 222

	
	
	
	E-Mail: jkaji@occu-med.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: No

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	2. 
	Concentra

384 Embarcadero Way

Oakland, CA 94607
	Ervin Salmo
	Phone: 917-573-9486

	
	
	
	E-Mail: ervinsalmo@concentra.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: No

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	3. 
	Concentra

384 Embarcadero Way

Oakland, CA 94607
	Jim Gehres
	Phone: 707-236-2347

	
	
	
	E-Mail: james_gehres@concentra.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: No

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No


EXHIBIT C

VENDOR LIST

RFP No. 901555 - Pre-Employment Physical Exams and Occupational Health Services
This Vendor Bid List is being provided for informational purposes to assist bidders in making contact with other businesses as needed to develop local small and emerging business subcontracting relationships to meet the requirements of the Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) Program: http://www.acgov.org/gsa/departments/purchasing/policy/slebpref.htm.
This RFP Addendum is being issued to all vendors on the Vendor Bid List; the following revised vendor list includes contact information for each vendor attendee at the Networking/Bidders Conferences.
	RFP No. 901555 - Pre-Employment Physical Examinations

	Business Name
	Contact Name
	Contact Phone
	Address
	City
	State
	Email

	Aetna
	David  W. Broome
	(559) 241-1463
	One Sansome Street Suite 900
	San Francisco
	CA
	Broomed@aetna.com

	Alameda County Medical Center
	Adonna Esperanza
	(510) 437-4800
	1411 East 31st St. 
	Oakland
	CA
	aesperanza@acmedctr.org

	AllOne Health Resources 
	Laura Squire
	(425) 271-1408
	600 W. Cumming Park, Ste. 3400
	 
	MA
	Laura.squire@allonehealth.com 

	Alta Bates Summit Medical Center ER
	Rosalyn Ferman 
	(510) 869-6960
	2450 Ashby Ave
	Berkeley
	CA
	fermanr@sutterhealth.org

	American Industrial Care, Inc. 
	Richard Carpenter
	(925) 674-8080
	2477 Pacheco St. 
	Concord
	CA
	rcarpenter@aicmedical.com

	Bay Area Doctors
	Janak Sachdev
	(707) 694-6890
	PO Box 7081
	Napa
	CA
	bayareadoctors@sbcglobal.net

	Berkeley U.S. Health Works
	Jim Mills
	(510) 845-5170 
	2850 - 7th Street
	Berkeley
	CA
	jim.mills@ushworks.com

	Claremont Employee Assistance Prog
	Laurie Slez
	(800) 834-3773
	1050 Marina Village Pkwy, S203
	Alameda
	CA
	lslez@claremonteap.com

	Concentra Medical Centers 
	Arlene King
	(972) 364-8117
	384 Embarcadero West
	Oakland
	CA
	arlene.king@concentra.com

	Concentra Medical Centers 
	Sonny Vukic
	(415)-693-8376
	110 Sutter St.
	San Francisco
	CA
	sonny_vukic@concentra.com

	Concentra Medical Centers 
	Sonny Vukic
	(415) 305-5195
	384 Embarcadero West
	Oakland
	CA
	sonny.vukic@concentra.com

	Concentra Medical Centers 
	Divid Perez
	(510) 406-3112
	385 Embarcadero West
	Oakland
	CA
	david.perez@concentra.com

	Concentra Medical Centers 
	Ervin Salmo
	(917) 573-9486
	385 Embarcadero West
	Oakland
	CA
	ervinsalmo@concentra.com

	Concentra Medical Centers 
	Jim Gehres
	(707) 236-2347
	385 Embarcadero West
	Oakland
	CA
	james_gehres@concentra.com

	Emeryville Occupational Med Center
	Steven A Gest, MD
	(510) 653-5200
	PO Box 99440
	Emeryville
	CA
	gest.steven@gmail.com

	Fremont Urgent Care
	Cindy Lofthouse
	(510) 796-1000
	3161 Walnut Ave
	Fremont
	CA
	clofthouse@fremonturgent.com

	Global  Nurses Online
	Mary Covington
	(310) 776-7080
	10736 Jefferson Blvd., Ste. 655
	Culver City
	CA
	mary@md2you.com

	Highland Hospital 
	Adonna Esperanza
	(510) 437-4800
	1411 E. 31st St. 
	Oakland
	CA
	aesperanza@acmedctr.org

	Oakland Alta Bates 
	Rosalyn Ferman 
	(510) 869-6960
	350 Hawthrone St. 
	Oakland
	CA
	fermanr@sutterhealth.org

	Oakland Concentra Medical Center
	Jim Keever
	(510) 465-9565
	384 Embarcadero West
	Oakland
	CA
	james_keever@concentra.com

	Oakland U.S. Health Works
	Jim Mills
	(510) 638-0701
	7817 Oakport St. 
	Oakland
	CA
	jim.mills@ushworks.com

	Occu-Med 
	Sean Edin
	(559) 435-2800
	2121 W. Bullard Ave.
	Fresno
	CA
	sedin@occu-med.com

	Occu-Med, Ltd.
	Jared H. Kaji
	(559) 435-2800 ext. 222
	2121 West Bullard Avenue
	Fresno
	CA
	jkaji@occu-med.com

	San Leandro Concentra Medical Cntr
	Kristopher James
	(510) 351-3553
	2587 Merced St. 
	SanLeandro
	CA
	kris_james@concentra.com

	San Leandro Hospital ER
	Rosalyn Ferman 
	(510) 869-6960
	13855 E. 14th St. 
	SanLeandro
	CA
	fermanr@sutterhealth.org

	St. Rose Hospital ER
	Rose Dominguez
	(510) 264-4000
	27200 Calaroga Ave
	Hayward
	CA
	R.Dominguez@SRHCA.org

	St. Rose Occupational Health 
	Rose Dominguez
	(510) 264-4046
	27200 Calaroga Ave
	Hayward
	CA
	R.Dominguez@SRHCA.org

	Sterling Infosystems Inc.
	Bridget Larsen
	(415)-320-3042
	249 W. 17th St., 6th Fl.
	New York
	CA
	blarsen@sterlinginfosystems.com

	The Permanente Medical Group, Inc.
	Kathleen M. Simmons
	(707)556-5603
	3975 Old Redwood Hwy. Ste. 152
	Santa Rosa
	CA
	Kathleen.M.Simmons@kp.org

	U.S. HealthWorks Medical Group
	Shelly Neufeld
	(510) 908-0440
	13939 East 14th Street
	SanLeandro
	CA
	Shelly.Neufeld@ushworks.com

	US Healthworks
	Dana Paiva
	(510) 343-8300
	13940 East 14th Street
	SanLeandro
	CA
	dana.paiva@ushworks.com

	Union City U.S. Health Works
	Jim Mills
	(510) 489-8700
	33560 Alvarado-Niles Road
	Union City
	CA
	jim.mills@ushworks.com

	Valley Care Med. Center ER
	Alice Gomes
	(925) 847-3000
	5555 W. Las Positas
	Pleasanton
	CA
	agomes@valleycare.com

	Valley Care Memorial Hospital ER
	Alice Gomes
	(925) 447-7000
	1111 E. Stanley Blvd. 
	Livermore
	CA
	agomes@valleycare.com

	Valley Care Occupational Health
	Alice Gomes
	(925) 416-3562
	5565 W. Las Positas Bl. #150
	Pleasanton
	CA
	agomes@valleycare.com

	Valley Care Urgent Care&Occup
	Alice Gomes
	(925) 373-4162
	1133 E. Stanley Blvd.
	Livermore
	CA
	agomes@valleycare.com

	Washington Hospital ER
	Mike Rogers
	(510) 797-1111
	2000 Mowry Ave. 
	Fremont
	CA
	mike_rogers@whhs.com


EXHIBIT D
CURRENT CONTRACT PAYMENT TERMS
RFP No. 901555 - Pre-Employment Physical Exams and Occupational Health Services

	EXHIBIT B

	COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

	RFP No. 900946

	for

	Pre-Employment Physical Exams and Occupational Services

	BID FORM

	Cost shall be submitted on Exhibit B as is.  No alterations or changes of any kind are permitted.  Bid responses that do not comply will be subject to rejection in total.  The cost quoted below shall include all taxes and all other charges and is the cost the County will pay for the three year term of any contract that is a result of this bid.

	Exam Type
	Components
	Unit of Measure
	Estimated Usage Per Year (a)
	Year 1
	Year 2
	Year 3
	3 Year Extended Cost (h)

	
	
	
	
	Cost (b)
	Extended Cost (c) (c)=(a)x(b)
	Cost (d)
	Extended Cost (e) (e)=(a)x(d)
	Cost (f)
	Extended Cost (g) (g)=(a)x(f)
	(h)=(c)+(e)+(g)

	Type 1
	General Medical Examination
	Per Exam
	177
	$119
	$21,063
	$119
	$21,063
	$119
	$21,063
	$63,189

	
	PPD Skin Test
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Blood Chemistry A (Fasting glucose test) 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Range of Motion Back Exam
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Type 2
	General Medical Examination
	Per Exam
	29
	$149
	$4,321
	$149
	$4,321
	$149
	$4,321
	$12,963

	
	Audiometric Testing with Headset
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	PPD Skin Test
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Blood Chemistry A (Fasting glucose test)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Range of Motion Back Exam
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Type 3
	General Medical Examination
	Per Exam
	3
	$164
	$492
	$164
	$492
	$164
	$492
	$1,476

	
	Audiometric Testing with Headset
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	PPD Skin Test
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Blood Chemistry C (Fasting glucose test and complete blood count)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Range of Motion Back Exam
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Type 4
	General Medical Examination
	Per Exam
	13
	$154
	$2,002
	$154
	$2,002
	$154
	$2,002
	$6,006

	
	PPD Skin Test
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Pulmonary Function Test
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Blood Chemistry A (Fasting glucose test)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Range of Motion Back Exam
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	EXHIBIT B

	COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

	RFP No. 900946

	for

	Pre-Employment Physical Exams and Occupational Services

	BID FORM

	Cost shall be submitted on Exhibit B as is.  No alterations or changes of any kind are permitted.  Bid responses that do not comply will be subject to rejection in total.  The cost quoted below shall include all taxes and all other charges and is the cost the County will pay for the three year term of any contract that is a result of this bid.

	Exam Type
	Components
	Unit of Measure
	Estimated Usage Per Year (a)
	Year 1
	Year 2
	Year 3
	3 Year Extended Cost (h)

	
	
	
	
	Cost (b)
	Extended Cost (c) (c)=(a)x(b)
	Cost (d)
	Extended Cost (e) (e)=(a)x(d)
	Cost (f)
	Extended Cost (g) (g)=(a)x(f)
	(h)=(c)+(e)+(g)

	Type 5
	General Medical Examination
	Per Exam
	27
	$199
	$5,373
	$199
	$5,373
	$199
	$5,373
	$16,119

	
	Audiometric Testing with Headset
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	PPD Skin Test
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Pulmonary Function Test
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Blood Chemistry C (Fasting glucose test and complete blood count)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Range of Motion Back Exam
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Type 6
	General Medical Examination
	Per Exam
	14
	$184
	$2,576
	$184
	$2,576
	$184
	$2,576
	$7,728

	
	Audiometric Testing with Headset
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	PPD Skin Test
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Pulmonary Function Test
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Blood Chemistry A (Fasting glucose test)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Range of Motion Back Exam
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Type 7
	General Medical Examination
	Per Exam
	64
	$519
	$33,216
	$519
	$33,216
	$519
	$33,216
	$99,648

	
	Audiometric Testing with OSHA-Approved Sound Booth
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	PPD Skin Test
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	One-View Chest X-Ray
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Pulmonary Function Test
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Stress EKG
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Blood Chemistry D (Fasting glucose test, ALT, AST and complete blood count)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Gross and Microscopic Urinalysis
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Range of Motion Back Exam
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


	EXHIBIT B

	COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

	RFP No. 900946

	for

	Pre-Employment Physical Exams and Occupational Services

	BID FORM

	Cost shall be submitted on Exhibit B as is.  No alterations or changes of any kind are permitted.  Bid responses that do not comply will be subject to rejection in total.  The cost quoted below shall include all taxes and all other charges and is the cost the County will pay for the three year term of any contract that is a result of this bid.

	Exam Type
	Components
	Unit of Measure
	Estimated Usage Per Year (a)
	Year 1
	Year 2
	Year 3
	3 Year Extended Cost (h)

	
	
	
	
	Cost (b)
	Extended Cost (c) (c)=(a)x(b)
	Cost (d)
	Extended Cost (e) (e)=(a)x(d)
	Cost (f)
	Extended Cost (g) (g)=(a)x(f)
	(h)=(c)+(e)+(g)

	
Type 8
	General Medical Examination
	Per Exam
	115
	$189
	$21,735
	$189
	$21,735
	$189
	$21,735
	$65,205

	
	Audiometric Testing with Headset
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	PPD Skin Test
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Pulmonary Function Test
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Blood Chemistry B (Fasting glucose test, ALT and AST)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Range of Motion Back Exam
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Type 9
	General Medical Examination
	Per Exam
	2
	$169
	$338
	$169
	$338
	$169
	$338
	$1,014

	
	PPD Skin Test
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Pulmonary Function Test
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Blood Chemistry C (Fasting glucose test and complete blood count)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Range of Motion Back Exam
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Type 10
	General Medical Examination
	Per Exam
	44
	$545
	$23,980
	$545
	$23,980
	$545
	$23,980
	$71,940

	
	Audiometric Testing with OSHA-Approved Sound Booth
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	PPD Skin Test
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	One-view Chest X-Ray
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Pulmonary Function Test
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Stress EKG
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Blood Chemistry E (Blood Chemistry Panel and Complete Blood Count)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Gross and Microscopic Urinalysis
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Range of Motion Back Exam
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


	EXHIBIT B

	COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

	RFP No. 900946

	for

	Pre-Employment Physical Exams and Occupational Services

	BID FORM

	Cost shall be submitted on Exhibit B as is.  No alterations or changes of any kind are permitted.  Bid responses that do not comply will be subject to rejection in total.  The cost quoted below shall include all taxes and all other charges and is the cost the County will pay for the three year term of any contract that is a result of this bid.

	Exam Type
	Components
	Unit of Measure
	Estimated Usage Per Year (a)
	Year 1
	Year 2
	Year 3
	3 Year Extended Cost (h)

	
	
	
	
	Cost (b)
	Extended Cost (c) (c)=(a)x(b)
	Cost (d)
	Extended Cost (e) (e)=(a)x(d)
	Cost (f)
	Extended Cost (g) (g)=(a)x(f)
	(h)=(c)+(e)+(g)

	Type 11
	General Medical Examination
	Per Exam
	4
	$124
	$496
	$124
	$496
	$124
	$496
	$1,488

	
	PPD Skin Test
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Blood Chemistry B (Glucose, ALT and AST)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Range of Motion Back Exam
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Type 12
	General Medical Examination
	Per Exam
	3
	$134
	$402
	$134
	$402
	$134
	$402
	$1,206

	
	PPD Skin Test
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Blood Chemistry C (Glucose, Complete Blood Count)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Range of Motion Back Exam
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Test
	Department of Transportation (DOT) Medical Exam
	Each
	51
	$70
	$3,570
	$70
	$3,570
	$70
	$3,570
	$10,710

	Test
	Blood Lead
	Each
	100
	$25
	$2,500
	$25
	$2,500
	$25
	$2,500
	$7,500

	Test
	Blood Zinc Protoporphyrin
	Each
	100
	$35
	$3,500
	$35
	$3,500
	$35
	$3,500
	$10,500

	Test
	Hepatitis A Titer
	Each
	87
	$40
	$3,480
	$40
	$3,480
	$40
	$3,480
	$10,440

	Test
	Hepatitis B Titer
	Each
	377
	$31
	$11,687
	$31
	$11,687
	$31
	$11,687
	$35,061

	Test
	Hepatitis C Titer
	Each
	384
	$45
	$17,280
	$45
	$17,280
	$45
	$17,280
	$51,840

	Test
	Mumps Titer
	Each
	384
	$35
	$13,440
	$35
	$13,440
	$35
	$13,440
	$40,320

	Test
	Rubella Titer
	Each
	384
	$35
	$13,440
	$35
	$13,440
	$35
	$13,440
	$40,320

	Test
	Rubeola Titer
	Each
	384
	$35
	$13,440
	$35
	$13,440
	$35
	$13,440
	$40,320

	Test
	Varicella Titer
	Each
	384
	$35
	$13,440
	$35
	$13,440
	$35
	$13,440
	$40,320

	Vaccine
	MMR Vaccine
	Each
	67
	$59
	$3,953
	$59
	$3,953
	$59
	$3,953
	$11,859

	Vaccine
	Varivax Vaccine
	Each
	10
	$80
	$800
	$80
	$800
	$80
	$800
	$2,400

	Vaccine
	Hepatitis A
	Each
	53
	$72
	$3,816
	$72
	$3,816
	$72
	$3,816
	$11,448

	Vaccine
	Hepatitis B
	Each
	53
	$65
	$3,445
	$65
	$3,445
	$65
	$3,445
	$10,335

	Vaccine
	Seasonal Flu
	Each
	250
	$20
	$5,000
	$20
	$5,000
	$20
	$5,000
	$15,000

	Vaccine
	Rabies
	Each
	10
	$184
	$1,840
	$184
	$1,840
	$184
	$1,840
	$5,520

	Vaccine
	TDAP
	Each
	170
	$40
	$6,800
	$40
	$6,800
	$40
	$6,800
	$20,400


	EXHIBIT B

	COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

	RFP No. 900946

	for

	Pre-Employment Physical Exams and Occupational Services

	BID FORM

	Cost shall be submitted on Exhibit B as is.  No alterations or changes of any kind are permitted.  Bid responses that do not comply will be subject to rejection in total.  The cost quoted below shall include all taxes and all other charges and is the cost the County will pay for the three year term of any contract that is a result of this bid.

	Exam Type
	Components
	Unit of Measure
	Estimated Usage Per Year (a)
	Year 1
	Year 2
	Year 3
	3 Year Extended Cost (h)

	
	
	
	
	Cost (b)
	Extended Cost (c) (c)=(a)x(b)
	Cost (d)
	Extended Cost (e) (e)=(a)x(d)
	Cost (f)
	Extended Cost (g) (g)=(a)x(f)
	(h)=(c)+(e)+(g)

	Firefighter Exam
	Complex Exam
	Per Exam
	309
	$983
	$303,747
	$983
	$303,747
	$983
	$303,747
	$911,241

	
	Respirator 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Urine
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Quantiferon TB test
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	X-Ray (if TB test is positive)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Blood Evaluation
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Chem Panel
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Lipid Panel
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	DOT/DMV Exam
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Audiogram
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Spirometry
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	EKG
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Mumps titer
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Rubella titer
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Rubeola titer
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Varicella titer
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	MMR Vaccine
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Varicella vaccine
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Hep Panel (A, B, C) titer
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Hep C Antibody
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Hep B Vaccine (3x)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Extra Forms
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Hemoglobin A1C (glucose) 
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	TDAP Vaccine
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	


	EXHIBIT B

	COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

	RFP No. 900946

	for

	Pre-Employment Physical Exams and Occupational Services

	BID FORM

	Cost shall be submitted on Exhibit B as is.  No alterations or changes of any kind are permitted.  Bid responses that do not comply will be subject to rejection in total.  The cost quoted below shall include all taxes and all other charges and is the cost the County will pay for the three year term of any contract that is a result of this bid.

	Exam Type
	Components
	Unit of Measure
	Estimated Usage Per Year (a)
	Year 1
	Year 2
	Year 3
	3 Year Extended Cost (h)

	
	
	
	
	Cost (b)
	Extended Cost (c) (c)=(a)x(b)
	Cost (d)
	Extended Cost (e) (e)=(a)x(d)
	Cost (f)
	Extended Cost (g) (g)=(a)x(f)
	(h)=(c)+(e)+(g)

	Firefighter Exam
	Plus:

	
	All Firefighters

	
	Fecal Occult (for FF > 40  yrs old)
	Per Exam
	215
	$20
	$4,300
	$20
	$4,300
	$20
	$4,300
	$12,900

	
	Treadmill Stress (for FF > 40  yrs old)
	Per Exam
	215
	$230
	$49,450
	$230
	$49,450
	$230
	$49,450
	$148,350

	
	Thallium Stress (for FF >  40  yrs old with irreg EKG)
	Per Exam
	20
	$1,035
	$20,700
	$1,035
	$20,700
	$1,035
	$20,700
	$62,100

	
	Male Firefighters

	
	PSA (for male FF > 40 yrs old)
	Per Exam
	215
	$53
	$11,395
	$53
	$11,395
	$53
	$11,395
	$34,185

	
	Female Firefighters 

	
	Mammogram (for female FF >35 yrs old)
	Per Exam
	9
	$145
	$1,305
	$145
	$1,305
	$145
	$1,305
	$3,915

	
	Pelvic & Pap (for all female FF)
	Per Exam
	9
	$125
	$1,125
	$125
	$1,125
	$125
	$1,125
	$3,375
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	COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

	RFP No. 900946

	For
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	BID FORM

	Cost shall be submitted on Exhibit B as is.  No alterations or changes of any kind are permitted.  Bid responses that do not comply will be subject to rejection in total.  The cost quoted below shall include all taxes and all other charges and is the cost the County will pay for the three year term of any contract that is a result of this bid.

	Exam Type
	Components
	Unit of Measure
	Estimated Usage Per Year (a)
	Year 1
	Year 2
	Year 3
	3 Year Extended Cost (h)

	
	
	
	
	Cost (b)
	Extended Cost (c) (c)=(a)x(b)
	Cost (d)
	Extended Cost (e) (e)=(a)x(d)
	Cost (f)
	Extended Cost (g) (g)=(a)x(f)
	(h)=(c)+(e)+(g)

	On-Site Service @ Juvenile Justice Center (JJC)
	Provide cost of labor (only) for onsite services of; performing respirator fit testing, review respirator medical questionnaire, perform TB tests, provide seasonal flu vaccine, and provide Hepatitis B vaccines from 6:00 am to 5:00 pm.
Cost of the different tests shall be quoted below.
	Day
	3
	$5,280
	$15,840
	$5,280
	$15,840
	$5,280
	$15,840
	$47,520

	
	Respirator Fit Testing
	Each
	200
	$35
	$7,000
	$35
	$7,000
	$35
	$7,000
	$21,000

	
	Respirator Medical Questionnaire 
	Each
	200
	$35
	$7,000
	$35
	$7,000
	$35
	$7,000
	$21,000

	
	TB Testing and Reading
	Test and Reading (Combined)
	132
	$20
	$2,640
	$20
	$2,640
	$20
	$2,640
	$7,920

	
	Seasonal Flu Vaccine
	Each
	62
	$20
	$1,240
	$20
	$1,240
	$20
	$1,240
	$3,720

	
	Hepatitis B Vaccine
	Each
	69
	$65
	$4,485
	$65
	$4,485
	$65
	$4,485
	$13,455
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	Cost shall be submitted on Exhibit B as is.  No alterations or changes of any kind are permitted.  Bid responses that do not comply will be subject to rejection in total.  The cost quoted below shall include all taxes and all other charges and is the cost the County will pay for the three year term of any contract that is a result of this bid.

	Exam Type
	Components
	Unit of Measure
	Estimated Usage Per Year (a)
	Year 1
	Year 2
	Year 3
	3 Year Extended Cost (h)

	
	
	
	
	Cost (b)
	Extended Cost (c) (c)=(a)x(b)
	Cost (d)
	Extended Cost (e) (e)=(a)x(d)
	Cost (f)
	Extended Cost (g) (g)=(a)x(f)
	(h)=(c)+(e)+(g)

	On-Site Service @ Alameda County Sheriff’s Office (ACSO)
	Provide cost of labor (only) for onsite services of; performing TB tests and provide seasonal flu vaccine from 6:00 am to 11:00 am and from 4:00 pm-8:00 p.m.

Cost of the different tests shall be quoted below.
	Day
	14
	$2,160
	$30,240
	$2,160
	$30,240
	$2,160
	$30,240
	$90,720

	
	TB Testing and Reading
	Test and Reading (Combined)
	539
	$20
	$10,780
	$20
	$10,780
	$20
	$10,780
	$32,340

	
	Seasonal Flu Vaccine
	Each
	328
	$20
	$6,560
	$20
	$6,560
	$20
	$6,560
	$19,680


	EXHIBIT B

	COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

	RFP No. 900946

	for

	Pre-Employment Physical Exams and Occupational Services

	BID FORM

	Cost shall be submitted on Exhibit B as is.  No alterations or changes of any kind are permitted.  Bid responses that do not comply will be subject to rejection in total.  The cost quoted below shall include all taxes and all other charges and is the cost the County will pay for the three year term of any contract that is a result of this bid.

	Exam Type
	Components
	Unit of Measure
	Estimated Usage Per Year (a)
	Year 1
	Year 2
	Year 3
	3 Year Extended Cost (h)

	
	
	
	
	Cost (b)
	Extended Cost (c) (c)=(a)x(b)
	Cost (d)
	Extended Cost (e) (e)=(a)x(d)
	Cost (f)
	Extended Cost (g) (g)=(a)x(f)
	(h)=(c)+(e)+(g)

	Health Expo
	Provide a total for 840 seasonal flu vaccines at the three Annual Health Expo sites.  Price to include all vaccines, material & equipment medical services and administrative services
	Lot
	One 
	$18,480
	$18,480
	$20,160
	$20,160
	$21,840
	$21,840
	$60,480

	
	Bone Density Testing
	Per Test
	96
	$25
	$2,400
	$25
	$2,400
	$25
	$2,400
	$7,200

	Clinic Service
	Cal/OSHA §5144 review respirator medical evaluation questionnaire 
	Each
	200
	$35
	$7,000
	$35
	$7,000
	$35
	$7,000
	$21,000

	
	Cal/OSHA §5144 conduct annual respirator fit testing
	Per Exam
	200
	$35
	$7,000
	$35
	$7,000
	$35
	$7,000
	$21,000

	
	(at clinic)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Other Services
	Administrative service to coordinate on-site services
	Per Hour
	250
	$35
	$8,750
	$35
	$8,750
	$35
	$8,750
	$26,250

	Other Services
	Medical Assistant service
	Per Hour
	250
	$120
	$30,000
	$120
	$30,000
	$120
	$30,000
	$90,000

	Other Services
	Registered Nurse service
	Per Hour
	250
	$120
	$30,000
	$120
	$30,000
	$120
	$30,000
	$90,000

	Other Services
	Licensed Vocation Nurse service
	Per Hour
	250
	$120
	$30,000
	$120
	$30,000
	$120
	$30,000
	$90,000

	Other Services
	Nurse Practitioner service
	Per Hour
	250
	$120
	$30,000
	$120
	$30,000
	$120
	$30,000
	$90,000

	
	
	
	Year 1 Total
	$878,862
	Year 2 Total
	$880,542
	Year 3 Total
	$882,222
	$2,641,626

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	3 Year Extended Cost Total
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